

Message from the CEO

Our worldwide reputation for honest and reliable business conduct, built over many years, is critical to Veeco's success. Yet, it is tested and must be proven in each business transaction we make. The Veeco Code of Conduct sets forth the standards to which we hold ourselves accountable in order to maintain this reputation. It summarizes the laws, regulations and Company policies applicable to the performance of our day-to-day activities for Veeco. Since no code of conduct or set of policies can cover every situation, the Code also provides quidance for seeking help and raising concerns.

We have established certain Core Values which define who we are as individuals and as representatives of Veeco. These Core Values, which help shape the principles of this Code, consist of the following:

- We will always put our CUSTOMERS first
- We will never compromise on SAFETY
- We will always demonstrate RESPECT
- We will never stop IMPROVING
- We will always be ACCOUNTABLE
- We will never forget that **DIVERSITY & INCLUSION** make us stronger

These Core Values guide every conversation, decision and action taken by Veeco, and it is through the pursuit and achievement of these Core Values that we make Veeco a great place to work.

Adhering to our Core Values and the highest ethical and legal standards is of the utmost importance to Veeco. Your conduct should reflect this priority. If you are ever in doubt about what is expected of you or concerned about conduct that seems inconsistent with our Core Values or the requirements of this Code, speak up and get assistance from your supervisor or from one of the other resources discussed in the Code. If you prefer to raise the concern anonymously, you are encouraged to use the Veeco Hotline.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Bill Miller CEO

Contents

Code of Conduct	04
Responsibilities	06
Questions & Concerns	08
Consequences	10
Specific Topics	12
Employment Practices, Diversity & Inclusion	13
Conflicts of Interest	14
Sensitive Payments	15
Financial Reporting	16
Confidential & Proprietary Information	17
Information Technology	18
Antitrust and Unfair Competition	19
Export Controls	19
Environmental, Health & Safety	20
Social Responsibility	20
Securities Trading	21
External Communications	21
Privacy of Employee Records	22
RBA Code of Conduct	22
Waivers	23
Applicability in Foreign Jurisdictions	25



Code of Conduct

This Code of Conduct presents the principles that employees, board members, channel partners and others acting on behalf of Veeco (collectively, "Covered Individuals") must follow to ensure we do the right thing and follow the laws which apply to us. Veeco is committed to these rules because they help make us a strong company with a good reputation, which helps us attract and keep our customers and employees.

We also have more detailed rules, called our "controls" and "procedures." This Code, those controls and procedures, and the training we provide help us do what's right and avoid doing wrong. They help us find out if there is any unethical or illegal activity at our Company and, if so, to do something about it. They help reduce the chance that any of us or the Company will get into trouble with the law or damage our good reputation.

This Code will help you do the right thing in most situations. But when you are not sure, take time to ask these questions:

- Do I really understand the facts and the consequences of the situation and have I thought carefully about the available options?
- Will this appear appropriate to others, or would I be embarrassed if someone knew?
- Is this consistent with the long term interests of Veeco from the perspective of our shareholders, our customers, and everyone else interested in our success?
- Is there a specific Veeco policy providing quidance for this situation?

If you still have doubts, ask your supervisor or someone in Legal, Human Resources or Finance, or see the "Questions and Concerns" section on page 9 for additional ways to get help.

Waivers and applicability of non-US laws to this Code are explained at the end of this Code.

Veeco is committed to these rules because they help make us a strong company with a good reputation, which helps us attract and keep our customers and employees.



Responsibilities

At Veeco, success is more than simply meeting our business goals — it is also about how we do business. First and foremost, we must act with integrity and transparency in everything we do. Unwavering integrity is a foundational principle that underlies our corporate values and defines who we are. Integrity comes ahead of business results and should never be compromised in favor of a business opportunity. We will never achieve our vision or mission without it.

Veeco management is held to high standards of honesty and is expected to ensure compliance with all applicable laws while showing their commitment to the standards of this Code. Our management must ensure that all Covered Individuals are aware of, and comply with, this Code and the laws applicable to Veeco's business. Certain executives are subject to additional rules set forth in the **Code of Ethics for Senior Officers.**

Every Covered Individual is responsible for making sure that they understand and comply with this Code and all relevant laws. That means asking questions, raising concerns and making sure it is clear how these ethical standards apply to our jobs. It is also every Covered Individual's responsibility to report any concerns about non-compliance, and this Code explains how to do so.



Management must ensure that all Covered Individuals receive a copy of this Code upon employment and on an annual or other periodic basis thereafter.

Supervisors must make sure that
Covered Individuals' questions are
answered clearly and accurately and
any concerns raised are brought to
management's attention promptly.
Where the conduct of supervisory
personnel is in question, the
appropriate level is top management.
No retaliation of any kind for good
faith reporting of concerns will be
tolerated.

Covered Individuals are expected to review this Code regularly. Consult with your colleagues, supervisors or other members of management with any questions you may have. If you are not sure what the right thing to do is, speak up and get the advice and quidance you need.

If you notice something at Veeco that seems to be in violation of this Code or applicable law, or seems unethical, report it. Simply put, if you SEE something, SAY something.



Questions & Concerns

If you have a question or concern you wish to report, the first place you should go is to your supervisor, but you are also free to go directly to the Legal, Human Resources and Finance departments. Department heads and the managers of each Veeco business unit are available to assist Covered Individuals with interpretation and guidance and are required to ensure that there is no retaliation of any kind for good faith reporting of concerns.

If for any reason you are uncomfortable raising a question or concern as addressed above, or if you wish for your communication to remain anonymous, you can report the information to the Veeco Hotline:

Veeco prohibits retaliating against anyone for reporting or supplying information about a concern, even if a good faith allegation turns out to be groundless.

By Telephone, within the U.S.A.:	888-419-0572
By Telephone, outside the U.S.A.:	Dial the AT&T USA Direct Access Number for the particular country which can be found at http://www.business.att.com/bt/access.jsp?c=C then dial 888-419-0572
By Internet:	https://veeco.alertline.com

If a Covered Individual has first-hand or other credible information indicating that questionable activity may be taking place in the Company, that Covered Individual has a responsibility, subject to applicable law, to report that information promptly using the means addressed in this Code. If the matter relates to issues described below under "Sensitive Payments" or "Financial Reporting," consideration should be given to directing the report to Veeco's Chief Financial Officer or head of Internal Audit.

If you provide your name but request confidential treatment when reporting a concern, your name will be revealed only to the head of Legal and, if appropriate, to the Board of Directors (as well as others who the head of Legal, the Board or one of its Committees deems advisable for proper handling of the report). If you request anonymity when reporting a concern, it would be a violation of Company policy for the Company to seek to determine who raised the concern, or to share your name with others if somehow determined.

Veeco prohibits retaliating against anyone for reporting or supplying information about a concern, even if a good faith allegation turns out to be groundless. However, anyone who deliberately makes a false accusation with the purpose of harming or retaliating against another Covered Individual or the Company may be subject to disciplinary action. Veeco's policy protecting against retaliation does not preclude the Company from making appropriate, lawful and legitimate employment or related decisions in the ordinary course of business.



Consequences

Violation of this Code, Veeco's controls and procedures, or applicable laws, and in some cases failure to report a violation, can be grounds for disciplinary action. Supervisors and members of management who do not show commitment to, and actively promote compliance with, this Code will be considered to be failing in their management responsibilities.

Review of Reported Violations

If management is informed of credible evidence of a violation of this Code, it will consult with Veeco's Legal Department or, as appropriate, other advisors to evaluate the gravity and credibility of the information and determine whether further inquiry is necessary or appropriate. Veeco's Legal Department is responsible for overseeing the review and investigation of serious reported violations, or for referring such matters to the Board of Directors or one of its committees. Investigations of serious matters may be conducted by, or under the supervision of, Veeco's head of Legal, outside attorneys, Internal Audit, and/or other expert advisors, if necessary.

Those participating in an investigation are to be given access to all information necessary or appropriate for them to fulfill their responsibilities.

Disciplinary Measures

If the Company determines that a Covered Individual has violated this Code or any of the laws and regulations that govern our business, appropriate action will be taken. Depending on the nature and severity of the violation, Veeco will take appropriate disciplinary action, where permitted by applicable law, up to and including termination, claims for reimbursement of losses or damages, and civil prosecution. Discipline will be handled fairly and consistently. Violations of the law may also result in criminal penalties.



Employment Practices, Diversity & Inclusion

Our employees drive our competitive advantage. Veeco believes that the best innovations emerge from our team members' diverse experiences, perspectives and backgrounds. Veeco takes a broad view of and promotes diversity in our workforce, which includes race, ethnicity, gender, sexual orientation, socioeconomic status, disability and age, among other aspects. Diversity and equality mean that everyone at Veeco has the opportunity to develop, contribute and advance, regardless of their identity. Inclusion means that our team members are seen, heard, valued and respected. Veeco is committed to building a diverse and inclusive culture where people feel valued for who they are, how they think and what they bring, and where all team members can develop and succeed.

It is Veeco's policy to select, train and promote the best qualified person for each position. Veeco is committed to equal opportunity in employment, training and promotion, and mandates fair and non-discriminatory employment practices. We do not discriminate against job applicants or employees because of race, religion, color, national origin, sex, ancestry, age, creed, marital or veteran status, sexual orientation, disability or handicap, or any other characteristic prohibited by law. We believe that providing a workplace free of discrimination, where all team members are treated fairly and with respect, is essential to fostering a culture of inclusion.

All Covered Individuals are expected to treat each other in a professional manner based on mutual respect, trust and individual dignity. Actions and words that are hostile, improper or offensive must be avoided under all circumstances. Behavior that is offensive, intimidates or unreasonably disrupts another person in his or her work is unacceptable and will not be tolerated. See Veeco's Anti-Harassment Policy for additional details.

Veeco is committed to upholding the human rights of workers, and to treat them with dignity and respect in accordance with the labor standards of the Responsible Business Alliance Code of Conduct. Veeco's **Human Rights Policy** formalizes our commitment to respect these human rights.

Veeco is committed to building a diverse and inclusive culture where people feel valued for who they are, how they think and what they bring, and where all team members can develop and succeed.

Conflicts of Interest

Generally, Covered Individuals may conduct their personal affairs as they wish. However, there are certain situations and activities that may potentially interfere with a Covered Individual's responsibilities to Veeco or create a conflict between the individual's interests and those of the Company. It is the responsibility of every Covered Individual to recognize and avoid any of the following situations:

- Any personal business transaction that may conflict with the interests of the Company. This could include, for example, the purchase of supplies by Veeco from a Covered Individual or a company in which a Covered Individual or a member of the Covered Individual's family has a significant interest.
- 2. Any financial interest that might influence the way a Covered Individual performs his/her responsibilities for the Company, such as a significant investment in a customer or supplier.
- 3. Any outside employment that would interfere with the fulfillment of job requirements or could negatively affect the Company. For example, employment by a customer, supplier or competitor of Veeco or work by a Covered Individual for himself or herself in an activity related to or competitive with Veeco's business.
- 4. Any gift of more than nominal value to a Covered Individual by an individual or a company that does, or is seeking to do, business with Veeco. The occasional receipt of nominal gifts (not in cash or cash equivalents), or reasonable meals and business entertainment generally do not create a conflict of interest.
- **5.** Employing relatives of management personnel, or any influence by a manager in the employment or placement of relatives.

Actions or decisions that further a Covered Individual's interests at the expense of Veeco's interests are considered unethical. Covered Individuals acting unethically are subject to discipline in accordance with this Code.

Veeco management will give priority to addressing any ethical concerns that a Covered Individual may have, and is responsible for ensuring the proper handling of any actual or apparent conflict of interest that may arise.

Sensitive Payments

At Veeco, we believe in competition based on our ability to design, develop, manufacture and provide quality products and services. We comply with all anti-corruption laws wherever we do business, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act ("FCPA") and the various other anti-bribery laws applicable to our activities. No payments may be made to any government official, customer employee or representative or anyone else to improperly obtain, retain or affect the timing or terms of business, or obtain any other advantage.

Covered Individuals must never give gifts, provide travel, meals or entertainment, do favors or make payments, or the like, to employees or representatives of existing or potential customers, suppliers, individuals or governmental agencies for the purpose of influencing the recipient's judgment about Veeco products and services, or offer anything of value to obtain any improper advantage. Specific rules regarding the types and values of gifts and favors which may be provided to customers and other trading partners are explained in the **Gift, Entertainment and Hospitality Policy**. These rules apply to indirect payments made through agents, consultants or other third parties as well as direct payments.

We must ensure that agents, consultants and other business partners that we entrust to interact with customers or government agencies on our behalf demonstrate high standards of legal and ethical conduct, and do not engage in corrupt practices in any business dealings with which we are associated. We must carefully review the credentials and reputations of prospective agents, consultants and representatives, prohibit inappropriate conduct in our written contracts with them, and carefully monitor their performance to assure that they comply with all applicable laws and this Code. We must ensure that no payments we make to business partners or other third parties are used for illegitimate purposes, such as prohibited payments to government officials.

While Covered Individuals are encouraged to participate as private citizens in the political process, this must be done in a manner which does not interfere with satisfactory work performance. Political contributions by or on behalf of the Company are prohibited.

No payments may be made to any government official, customer employee or representative or anyone else to improperly obtain, retain or affect the timing or terms of business, or obtain any other advantage.

Financial Reporting

Veeco requires honest and accurate recording and reporting of information in order to make responsible business decisions and to meet legal, financial, regulatory and management obligations. No payment on behalf of Veeco should be made without adequate supporting documentation or for any purpose other than that described in the documentation. Under no circumstances may any Covered Individual establish an undisclosed or unrecorded account or fund on hehalf of Veeco.

All reporting and disclosure of financial information must be complete, accurate, timely and understandable.

All reporting and disclosure of financial information must be complete, accurate, timely and understandable. It must be properly accounted for in the appropriate books and records of the Company in accordance with Veeco's financial policies and procedures, and must fairly represent the Company's financial position.

All transactions must be properly authorized and no Company resources may be used for any unlawful or improper purpose, whether or not disclosed.

Veeco's internal auditors and Veeco's independent auditors are to be given full access to all information within the Company necessary or appropriate for them to fulfill their responsibilities. All appropriate financial and non-financial information should be communicated accurately and on a timely basis by the proper Veeco personnel to management, the SEC, Veeco's shareholders, Veeco's auditors and other authorized agencies and institutions.



Confidential & Proprietary Information

Veeco's intellectual property and confidential information are extremely valuable Company assets. This includes patents, trade secrets, technical, marketing and commercial information, together with proposed business dealings and the names of employees, customers and suppliers. Covered Individuals often become aware of these and other types of proprietary information – whether concerning the Company, its employees or its current or potential customers, suppliers, strategic partners and channel partners – and Covered Individuals are responsible for protecting this information by following Veeco's policies and procedures.

Veeco's trade secrets and other confidential information should only be disclosed on a need-to-know basis, with precautions taken to avoid unauthorized disclosure. Disclosing Veeco's confidential or proprietary information to third parties or receiving it from third parties should only be done for Veeco's benefit pursuant to legitimate business relationships, and may require an executed and active non-disclosure agreement. These obligations continue even after your employment with Veeco ends. More information on classifying and responsibilities for obtaining, maintaining, and protecting Veeco's confidential and proprietary information can be found in the **Data Classification Policy** and **Intellectual Property Policy**.

Covered Individuals must also respect the intellectual property of others. It is against Company policy to use, copy, display, or distribute third-party copyrighted software, documentation, or other materials without permission or approval from the Legal Department. Covered Individuals are not permitted to use or copy software or documentation except to the extent that applicable license agreements allow. No confidential information obtained during or as a result of your work with former employers should be brought onto Company premises or used in any form in your work at Veeco.

All employees are required to disclose to Veeco any discovery or invention that they make or have reason to believe might be useful, patentable or otherwise protectable, including trade secrets, in the course of their employment.

Although it is an important part of legitimate sales and marketing efforts to gather information about our markets and competitors, the confidential or proprietary information of competitors, customers or suppliers should not be obtained, directly or indirectly, by improper means. It is against Veeco policy to misappropriate trade secrets or other confidential information, induce a breach of a nondisclosure agreement, or use improper methods (such as deceit, trespass or theft) to obtain such information.

Veeco's trade secrets and other confidential information should only be disclosed on a need-to-know basis, with precautions taken to avoid unauthorized disclosure.

Information Technology

Veeco's telephone system, voicemail, computers, software and networks, including the workstations, laptops and mobile phones provided to Veeco employees, are the property of Veeco and are provided for business purposes. Electronic records, such as voicemail, email, text messages and computer files, that are produced using Veeco IT resources are Veeco property. In the ordinary course of its business, the Company has the right to review the information contained in its systems and equipment. Covered Individuals should have no expectation that any information transmitted or received over Veeco equipment and systems, or stored on Veeco computers, phone systems or mobile phones, is or will remain private, except as may be required by applicable law.

Although limited personal use of Veeco IT resources is allowed, Covered Individuals may not use the system to store, download or distribute inappropriate or legally objectionable materials, or for other illegal or improper activities.

Covered Individuals should avoid exaggeration, derogatory remarks, guess-work, or inappropriate characterization of people and companies in email, internal memos and formal reports.



Antitrust & Unfair Competition

Veeco competes aggressively, but fairly, in the marketplace. No agreement or understanding may be made with competitors to fix or control prices, to allocate products, markets or territories, to refrain from or limit the manufacture, sale or production of any product, or otherwise restrict competition.

Never participate in any discussion with a representative of a competitor about pricing, price trends, profit margins, bids, terms or conditions of sale, customers, production capacity, marketing or product plans, business strategy or related topics without guidance from the Legal Department. Covered Individuals involved in trade associations or other situations where there is communication among competitors must be careful to avoid even the appearance of participation in a discussion of any of those topics.

It is a serious violation of Veeco policy to:

- Fail to warn a customer of any known dangers in connection with the use of our products;
- Make false or misleading claims or comments about Veeco products or competitors' products; or
- Cause customers or suppliers of our competitors to breach their contracts with such competitors.

Export Controls

Veeco provides its products and services to companies in different parts of the world. To do so, Veeco must comply with U.S. export control laws and regulations, operate under U.S. export licenses and follow applicable trade sanctions and embargoes. A violation of these rules could seriously damage our reputation and business. When exporting or re-exporting products, spare parts, accessories, training materials and technical information, all Covered Individuals must comply with applicable U.S. Department of Commerce and other regulations. Care must also be taken when disclosing restricted technical information to a non-U.S. citizen in the United States or abroad, as well as in screening customers and transactions that could possibly violate export controls. For more details, see the **Export Compliance Policy**.

Environmental, Health & Safety

Veeco is committed to excellence in environmental, health and safety [EH&S] performance. It is the Company's policy to conduct all aspects of our operations in a manner that protects human health and the environment, and that meets or exceeds all applicable laws, regulations and industry codes of practice. All Covered Individuals must adopt safe work practices, and make sure that they are aware of all legal requirements and Veeco EH&S policies applicable to their work. Particular care is required in any work involving hazardous or other regulated materials, wastes, or any discharges into the environment. Any doubts about the safety of working conditions or practices, or the applicability or meaning of a particular EH&S law or policy, should be reported immediately to your supervisor, the local EH&S coordinator, or the Human Resources Department.

Any doubts about the safety of working conditions or practices, or the applicability or meaning of a particular EH&S law or policy, should be reported immediately to your supervisor, the local EH&S coordinator, or the Human Resources Department.

Social Responsibility

Veeco prioritizes and continuously strives to improve social, ethical and environmental conditions across our industries. We have implemented social responsibility programs that apply across our organization and to our suppliers. These programs are based on our Core Values, are modeled on the Responsible Business Alliance Code of Conduct, and are integrated into our company culture to uphold the highest level of integrity. See our **Environmental & Social Responsibility Statement** for additional details.

Securities Trading

Covered Individuals must not buy or sell Veeco stock, options or other securities while in possession of material nonpublic information. The legal consequences could be severe if this policy is violated, even if the reasons for trading were not based on that information. In addition, Covered Individuals should only buy or sell Veeco stock in compliance with Veeco's **Securities Trading Policy**, including any applicable "safe" trading period thereunder. A Covered Individual with material non-public information may not buy or sell Veeco stock, even during an otherwise "safe" period.

A Covered Individual with material non-public information may not buy or sell Veeco stock, even during an otherwise "safe" period.

External Communications

Veeco is a publicly-traded company, and the communication of material nonpublic information (also known as "inside information") outside of the Company is strictly regulated by U.S. securities laws, which are intended to provide all investors with equal access to material information about a listed company at the same time. Any information that could reasonably affect an investor's decision to purchase or sell our stock is "material." Information isn't "public" unless it has been effectively disclosed in a manner sufficient to ensure its availability to the investing public. It can be illegal for a Covered Individual to pass inside information on to a third party who is buying or selling stock, even if that Covered Individual receives no financial benefit for doing so.

All inquiries from analysts, investors or other members of the financial and investment community, and all inquiries from the press and media, must be referred to Veeco's CEO, CFO or head of Investor Relations. Covered Individuals should not post or share nonpublic information about Veeco with any person outside the Company in any manner. This includes Internet discussion groups, chat rooms, message boards or other electronic media, even under an alias.

All inquiries from government agencies or public officials must be referred to the Legal Department or to a Veeco executive responsible for the particular area. It can be illegal for a Covered
Individual to pass inside information
on to a third party who is buying or
selling stock, even if that Covered
Individual receives no financial benefit
for doing so.

Privacy of Employee Records

Veeco recognizes that privacy is important to each of us. The Company maintains only those employee records required for its business, legal or contractual reasons, and limits access to and knowledge of those records to people who need the information for legitimate business or legal purposes. If you have access to personal information about Veeco employees, you must take precautions to ensure this information is not misused or improperly disclosed. In addition, you are required to observe all applicable laws regarding employee information, including those pertaining to information gathering, the maintenance of records for specified times and at specified locations, and restrictions regarding the movement of personnel data across national borders.

If you have access to personal information about Veeco employees, you must take precautions to ensure this information is not misused or improperly disclosed.

RBA Code of Conduct

Veeco adheres to the principles of the Responsible Business Alliance [RBA] Code of Conduct, which addresses what we expect from ourselves and our supply chain in terms of labor, health and safety, environmental practices, ethics and management systems. We are expected to comply with the RBA Code of Conduct and to ensure that our suppliers do the same. Supplier requirements, pertaining to the RBA Code of Conduct and otherwise, can be found in Veeco's **Supplier Code of Conduct**.

We are expected to comply with the RBA Code of Conduct and to ensure that our suppliers do the same.





Waivers

While the vast majority of the provisions of this Code must be strictly adhered to, in certain instances exceptions may be possible. In appropriate cases, Veeco's Chief Executive Officer may grant a specific, limited waiver of this Code for a non-executive employee if he or she determines, after careful consideration of the circumstances, that such a waiver is in the best interests of the Company. Waiver of any of the provisions of this Code for an executive officer or a member of the Board of Directors may only be made by the Board of Directors and will be promptly disclosed to the shareholders of Veeco with an explanation of the reasons for the waiver, as required by law or stock market regulation.





Applicability in Foreign Jurisdictions

As a global company, Veeco is regulated by many different national, regional, state and local laws. In addition to complying with this Code, Covered Individuals must abide by all laws that apply to them wherever they may live or work. Unless U.S. law is applicable, where local country laws contain mandatory requirements that differ from the provisions of this Code, those requirements prevail for people in those countries. To the extent any provision of this Code would be unlawful in any foreign jurisdiction, such provision shall not apply in such jurisdiction but the balance of this Code shall continue to apply. If the inclusion in this Code of any additional provision would be required in any foreign jurisdiction for this Code to be deemed lawful, then such provision shall be deemed to be included in this Code as it applies in such jurisdiction. If you have a question about applicability of this Code to you or to a specific situation or with regard to conflicts between local laws and applicable U.S. laws, please contact the Legal Department.

